

Patient information

Induction Agents before Kidney Transplantation in Liverpool

Pharmacy, Renal Transplant and Nephrology Specialities

Background

In addition to regular lifelong medication, transplant patients receive booster "induction" immunosuppressant drugs at the time of their operation. These give the new kidney extra protection from rejection in the first few days and weeks after transplantation.

All patients receive a single injection of intravenous steroid (methylprednisolone) in the operating theatre. There are then two possibilities for the main drug.

Basiliximab (Simulect®)

This is our standard choice for induction. It is given as an intravenous injection or short infusion (drip) over 20 minutes just before surgery. A second dose is needed four days later. Side-effects are rare and usually mild.

Alemtuzumab (Campath®)

This is a much stronger immunosuppressant (anti-rejection) drug. We use this if your kidney is judged to have a higher risk of rejection. We also use it if the new kidney has been kept colder for longer periods, or comes from an older donor. This enables us to give lower doses of the subsequent drugs, some of which make it harder for these kidneys to "kick-in."

Alemtuzumab is given by subcutaneous injection just before transplant and again the next day (unless you are over 60). It is a much stronger drug and before each dose pre-medication is given. This includes an anti-histamine and steroid injection, and a dose of paracetamol. Reactions are more likely to alemtuzumab but these pre-medications reduce their likelihood of in the patient.

Alemtuzumab UK Licence

Alemtuzumab is licensed as a medication in the UK, but not for kidney transplantation. It is widely used, however, in most NHS transplant centres.

As mentioned above, the Liverpool transplant protocol uses for alemtuzumab for kidneys which are at a higher risk of rejection, or need reduced doses of subsequent oral medication, in what are known as an "off-label" uses.

Current NHS guidance is that patients receiving a medication "off -label" should be aware of this and that prescribers should explain the reasons for the medication and the risks versus benefits. Please ask any of the staff if you want further information.

Side-effects of Induction Medication

Like all immunosuppressants, induction agents weaken the immune system and the incidence of infections and cancers may be increased. Basiliximab is fairly mild in this respect, but alemtuzumab is a stronger drug. All new patients should avoid exposure to infectious family and friends, practice good hygiene, and report any unusual symptoms promptly.

Two particular infections are problematic, Pneumocystis jiroveci pneumonia (PCP) and cytomegalovirus (CMV) infection. In Liverpool, all new transplant patients who received either agent have a six months' course of low-dose co-trimoxazole to prevent PCP. Depending on which induction agent was used, and the viral status of both donor and patient, a three to six months' course of antiviral medication may also be needed to prevent CMV.

Any Questions?

Please ask any doctor, nurse or pharmacist if you have any questions or concerns.

Feedback

Your feedback is important to us and helps us influence care in the future.

Following your discharge from hospital or attendance at your Outpatient appointment you will receive a text asking if you would recommend our service to others. Please take the time to text back, you will not be charged for the text and can opt out at any point. Your cooperation is greatly appreciated.

Further information

For further information please feel free to contact the renal pharmacists through their contact line

Tel: 0151 706 4354

Text phone number: 18001 0151 706 4354.

The ward and community nurses and doctors can also contact us on your behalf if you wish.

You may find the following web pages useful for information about your medicines.

Kidney Patient Guide http://www.kidneypatientguide.org.uk/medicationKinds.php

Royal Infirmary of Edinburgh http://www.edren.org/pages/edreninfo.php

Author: Pharmacy, Renal Transplant and Nephrology Specialities

Review Date: November 2022

All Trust approved information is available on request in alternative formats, including other languages, easy read, large print, audio, Braille, moon and electronically.

يمكن توفير جميع المعلومات المتطقة بالمرضى الموافق عليهم من قبل انتمان المستشفى عند الطلب بصيغ أخرى، بما في ذلك لغات أخرى وبطرق تسهل قراءتها وبالحروف الطباعية الكبيرة وبالصوت وبطريقة برايل للمكفوفين وبطريقة مون والكترونيا.

所有經信托基金批准的患者資訊均可以其它格式提供,包括其它語言、易讀閱讀軟件、大字

體、音頻、盲文、穆恩體(Moon)盲文和電子格式,敬請索取。

در صورت تمایل میتوانید کلیه اطلاعات تصویب شده توسط اتحادیه در رابطه با بیماران را به اشکال مختلف در دسترس داشته باشید، از جمله به زبانهای دیگر، به زبان ساده، چاپ درشت، صوت، خط مخصوص کوران، مون و بصورت روی خطی موجود است.

ز انباریی پنوهندیدار به و نمخوشانه ی لهلایس تراسته و پسمند کر اون، نمگس داو ا بکرنت له فور مانمکانی تردا بریتی له زمانه کانی تر، نیزی رید (هاسان خونندنه وه)، چایی گهوره، شریتی دهنگ، هیلی موون و نمانیکترونیکی همیه.

所有经信托基金批准的患者信息均可以其它格式提供,包括其它语言、易读阅读软件、大字体、音频、盲文、穆恩体(Moon)盲文和电子格式,敬请索取。

Dhammaan warbixinta bukaanleyda ee Ururka ee la oggol yahay waxaa marka la codsado lagu heli karaa nuskhado kale, sida luqado kale, akhris fudud, far waaweyn, dhegeysi, farta braille ee dadka indhaha la', Moon iyo nidaam eletaroonig ah.